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Inovest aims to be the benchmark for generating innovative investment opportunities, merging global best practice and regional

investment acumen to deliver profitable and value adding ventures to shareholders, clients, business partners, employees, and
the communities we serve.

\Vission

Inovest will continually foster a commitment to delivering superior returns by becoming a gateway for diverse and innovative
investments, building strategic partnerships, and earning investor enthusiasm and trust. Inovest will be recognized for its
pioneering approach to delivering consistent performance based on global best practices, and by the integrity and principles
of Shariah compliance.

Key Notes:

e Delivering superior returns - Inovest is results focused — our business mantra dictates that actions speak louder than
words and our brand credo will be delivered through tangible results.

e Being a gateway for innovative investment - Inovest aims to become the partner of choice for pioneering investment
opportunities.

¢ Forming strategic partnerships - Inovest believes in building mutually beneficial relationships that allow us to capitalize
on the values and strengths of our partners and vice versa.

e Earning investor enthusiasm and trust - Inovest will establish itself as a benchmark for investor relationship management
ensuring the investor voice is always heard, and that their expectations are always exceeded.

e Pioneering approach - Inovest will introduce new sector focus, and become a creator of options and opportunities for
our stakeholders.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Chairman’s Message

In the name of Allah, most Gracious, most Merciful.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Directors’ Report of Inovest for the year ended 31
December 2009.

2009 has been a year of profound change within the financial
world at all levels. The shock waves of a worldwide economic
and financial meltdown continue to be felt; carrying through
from the preceding year, and well into this one. In fact, the
overall global economy was throughout the year obliged
to cope with a slowdown in growth rates at a level unseen
since the post World War Il era. Institutions and individuals
alike faced a range of stress agents to their economic
wellbeing, from a breakdown in securitization, to sharp
declines in the housing market, to drastically cut household
wealth, and a general collapse in business and consumer
confidence. There remains, however, a light at the end of this
tunnel; a consequence of the development of initiatives that
provided aggressive economic stimulus as well as long term
sustainability, containment of public debt and better fiscal
frameworks.

In spite of the widely felt economic turmoil, it is our belief,
that through times of such significant challenge and change,
opportunities inevitably present themselves. |t lies then, on us
as institutions and as people, to move; to capture opportunities
and to harness the momentum that comes with change in
order to ensure future success. Quite simply, the best way to
do this is to be prepared. For Inovest, 2009 has been a year
of movement and of preparation for future strategic moves
within the forthcoming fiscal year.

Transformative Beginnings

Considering the many challenges that have resulted from the
world financial crisis, Inovest is especially proud to have made
2009 an eventful and profitable year. With the official launch
of the company and brand at the start of the year, Inovest set
the tone for a positive corporate approach marked by valuing
intelligence, invigoration, involvement, and innovation in all our
endeavors and interactions. With the establishment of Inovest
as a category 1 investment company, came the successful
re-launch of Al Khaleej Development Company (Tameer) as
Inovest’s dedicated real estate development arm. In this
regard, Tameer advanced its own strategy of sustainable
development, contributing to and underlining Inovest’s overall
success and portfolio value. More vitally, for both institutions,
the transformation allowed for new developments in terms
of human resource requirements. With this, we have found
it prudent to recruit fresh talent in newly established areas;
meeting both business and compliance requirements and
more importantly gearing Inovest with the capacity to meet
the challenges of the year armed with a team of experienced
and dedicated professionals.

Corporate Governance

Inovest’s corporate governance philosophy is based on
the belief that with fierce competition, the path towards
differentiation should be on the grounds of quality, best
practice, honesty and transparency. In this regard, Inovest
is also guided by the regulatory requirements of the Central
Bank of Bahrain (CBB) and both the Bahrain and Kuwait
Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, a great deal of time and effort
has been spent into candidly assessing, auditing, and setting
Inovest’s policies and procedures in order to ensure they are
in line with this overall philosophy. This we believe will not only
add to our integrity as a financial institution, but will also enable
us to become better equipped to deal with future challenges
and to benefit from potential opportunities.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Financial Results

Inovest’s Group activities has resulted in a net profit figure of
USD 11.3 Million for the challenging year ended 31 December
2009 compared to USD 91.2 Million of the previous year. The
return on Share Capital is 10.6%. On the other hand, total
shareholders’ equity has declined from USD 253 Million in
2008 end to USD 238 Million in the year ended 2009. This
drop in equity was a direct result from previous year’s payment
of 30% Cash Dividends (USD 29.1 Million). In addition, the
total size of the balance sheet went down from USD 527.6
Million in the previous reported year to USD 428.5 Million in
2009 year end due to the repayments of outstanding payables
and financing facilities.

Future Prospects

Looking forward, we acknowledge that the term to come
will represent a challenge to us and our peers in the market.
However, it remains our steadfast belief, that those who
approach business with diligence, productivity, and an
innovative spirit will outlast the repercussions of the challenging
times before us. In fact, it is in such trying times that true
lessons are learned. To that end, Inovest as an organization
has been able to harness the collective dynamism of its
executive management and team members, allowing us to
set forth a year of achievements.

As internationally and regionally, institutions and individuals
alike come to terms with the aftermath of the crisis; we
have taken marked steps towards ensuring Inovest’s future
successes. We are prepared to manage the challenges of the

year to come and more importantly to capture opportunities
for innovation and differentiation. With an eye to both internal
and external requirements for success, Inovest has outlined
several initiatives designed to provide sustainable platforms
upon which to build the company’s success. This includes
establishing and cementing several core competencies
unique to Inovest and facing shortcomings with an honest and
positive approach to change. It includes the development of
promising prospects within a diverse range of sectors including
healthcare, oil services, downstream pharmaceuticals, and
agriculture amongst others.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad bin Isa Al Khalifa, His
Royal Highness Prince, Khalifa bin Salman Al Khalifa, the Prime
Minister, and His Royal Highness Prince Salman bin Hamad
Al Khalifa, the Crown Prince and Commander in Chief of the
Bahrain Defense Force for their wise leadership, support, and
role in furthering the nation’s economic well-being and global
prosperity. My thanks also go to the several ministries and
governing bodies of Bahrain for their support and cooperation
throughout the year. Finally, | would like to extend my personal
and most sincere thanks to our shareholders, investors,
board of directors, and employees whose loyalty, diligence,
and contribution in supporting Inovest is, and will continue to
be, the most vital force in successfully moving the company
forward.

We ask God Almighty to continue to guide our steps on the
road to success.

.=

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi
Chairman
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Vice Chairman & Managing

Director's Message

The merits of business diversification and of utilizing alternative
platforms for growth have been longstanding beliefs within
the company. On these grounds, and in an effort to garner
the company’s full potential, Inovest was brought to light as
a category 1 investment firm; as the result of a proactive
decision within the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting
on July 27th 2008.

Inovest was born in a flurry of recovery efforts for the world’s
financial sector. The impact of the financial crisis marked
Inovest early on with an understanding for the need to build
the company’s growth on diversified business platforms that
would sustain and insulate its future development. This is
reflected in Inovest’s vision, and in its awareness that at the
core of its success must be the ability to differentiate tangibly;
to innovate, and to inspire.

The first quarter of the previous fiscal year represents an
evolutionary time for Inovest. Beyond launching, for Inovest the
year began with the resolve that business and organizational
development would go hand in hand. Rather than spending
the better part of the year on pure organizational set-up,
business was kick started with a small, highly effective and
multi-disciplinary team. The team announced a venture into
the field of water technology with the launch of the Bahrain
Water Technology Company (BWTC). This project, which
was in partnership with a US technology specialist, focused
on setting up a manufacturing facility with a short gestation,

designed to produce water filter cartridges for use in the
household, industrial and commercial sectors, as well as in
desalination plants in the MENA (Middle East North Africa)
region and internationally. Despite the challenge of a risk-
averse business climate, Inovest expects to successfully close
raising capital for the project; a true reflection of investors’
trust in Inovest’s projects.

In follow-up, the company sought a second venture in oil field
services, which is finding equivalent success with investors
who were part of the company’s initial set of prospective
clients. This is best attributed to the company’s ability to
identify value-added prospects that meet the risk appetites of
investors in a timely and rewarding manner. It is furthermore
a clear example of the professionalism and diligence of the
team behind such prospects.

The company’s current and future shareholders will find that
this aptitude and strategic orientation will follow through in our
business directives for forthcoming years. We will continue
to bring forward investment opportunities that are highly
scrutinized and differentiated, and that provide rewarding
returns to investors across more than one financial year. With
such adverse conditions at the outset of the company’s launch,
it is our belief that this aptitude to move, differentiate, and
innovate - is part of what makes Inovest and its subsidiaries’
annual achievements all the more significant.
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Inovest’s principle subsidiary, Al Khaleej Development
Company (Tameer), was re-introduced this year, as a wholly
owned subsidiary lending to Inovest its expertise in leading real
estate investments, advisory, and property development. In
its capacity as Inovest’s real estate development arm, Tameer
already has a legacy of achievements which have been valued
additions to the group portfolio. Both of Tameer’s subsidiaries,
Paramount and to a larger extent Tamcon have also been
value additions to the financial well-being of the Group and to
fulfiling a complete set of service provisions for the company.

Inovest matched its external business development efforts
with time spent internally augmenting our capabilities. This
included recruitment within principle posts as well as time
spent in setting up divisional policies and procedures, such
that clear guidelines have been set across all departments, in
terms of approved organizational procedures and practices.
Inovest also spent a significant amount of time this year
in formulating a strategy that mirrored our boutique-style
investment approach. To us as an institution, the concept
of being a boutique investment firm translates into closer
attention to our selection of investments, ensuring that they
reflect not only prudent financial prospects, but also the
choices of our pool of investors. Our strategy going forward
includes a number of initiatives designed to focus our efforts
on chosen growth platforms and strategic sector selections,

on developing closer relationships with our investors, stronger
alliances and partnerships, as well as streamlined operations
and internal synergies.

There is no question that these are defining times, and we
continue to go by the notion that innovation and differentiation
will be the markers of success. We continue to believe in our
ability to move forward with our initiatives for the coming years,
to better connect with our clients, understand and prepare for
challenges ahead, and prove ourselves tangibly. For this, for
the efforts and successes we foresee, and on behalf of myself
and the executive management, | extend a heartfelt thanks to
our shareholders for their support and belief in the company.
| further extend my appreciation to our strategic partners and
clients.

We ask God Almighty to continue to guide our steps on the
path to future success.

~—e2

Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan
Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Corporate
Governance Report

With view of our mandate to meet global best practices and in
line with regulatory requirements, this year Inovest has taken it
upon itself to formalize its approach to corporate governance,
seeking to promote the levels of transparency, corporate
fairness, and accountability within the organization. The
company’s philosophy towards corporate governance ties in
well with these values and those of the organization.

Governance Framework

Inovest has established a framework that provides guidance
for the effective governance of the Company. This includes
policies, procedures, guidelines and relevant management
reporting designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Board in monitoring the governance practices within the
company. Inovest is committed to continuously reviewing
and enhancing its corporate governance policies and to
incorporating necessary improvements from time to time.

Board of Directors and Board Committee Memberships
Inovest is governed by an elected board of directors, who are
ultimately responsible for the management and performance
of the Company. The current Board was elected by
shareholders at the general assembly on February 19th, 2008
for a fixed term of three years valid until the Annual General
Meeting due in 2011.  The Board has constituted a number
of committees with prescribed authorities, and with the
delegated responsibility of assisting the Board in carrying out
its duties and to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Executive Committee serves to assist the Board to co-
ordinate, guide and monitor the managementand performance,
as well as the investment decisions of the Company. As for
the Audit Committee, their tasks lie in supporting the Board
in fulfiling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the
Company’s internal audit and internal control systems as a
whole.

Directors:
Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi - Board Chairman
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has extensive management experience in a number
of different sectors including trading, manufacturing and financial
services. He is currently General Manager of Yagoob Al-Nafisi & Sons
Company, and former General Manager of Al-Nafisi Trading Company,
both based in Kuwait.

Prior to this, he held managerial positions at Kuwait Commercial
Bank and Kuwait Insulating Materials Manufacturing Company. Mr.
Al-Nafisi has equally extensive experience of serving on the Boards of
numerous financial institutions and companies in the GCC.

He is currently the Chairman of Al Khaleej Development Company
(Bahrain), Muthana Investment Company (Kuwait), Vice Chairman
of Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait), and formerly a Board member of
Gulf Investment House (Kuwait), Khaleeji Commercial Bank (Bahrain),
Gulf Finance House (Bahrain), and International Turnkey Systems
(Kuwait).

Ahmed Al Qattan - Vice Chairman and Managing Director
Executive Director

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board of
Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al Qattan holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Accounting from the University of Bahrain.

Mr. Al Qattan has extensive experience in the banking, manufacturing,
oil and gas, trading and contracting sectors across the GCC.

Before joining Inovest, he was Chief Investment Officer at Gulf
Finance House and, prior to this, a Partner at Arthur Andersen in the
Kingdom of Bahrain. Mr. Al Qattan is Chairman of Bahrain Investment
Wharf, Chairman of Tamcon Contracting Co., Vice Chairman of Al
Khaleej Development Co. (Tameer), Vice Chairman of Tala Property
Development Company, and a Board member in Durrat Marina.

Fareed Soud Al Fozan - Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Fareed Saud Al-Fozan is currently the Vice-chairman of Gulf
Group Holding Company a Kuwaiti based company that owns a
number of specialist companies strategically located throughout the
GCC countries.

He is a board member on a number of investment, real estate and
financial companies, namely: Boubyan Bank (Kuwait), Gulf Real Estate
(Saudi Arabia), Amlak Real Estate Co. (Kuwait) SAFCORP (Kuwait)
and Al Khaleej Development Company BSC (Bahrain).

He is also the Chairman of Young Arab Leaders Organization Kuwait
Chapter (an NGO). Mr. Al-Fozan graduated from Kuwait University
with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration majoring in
Banking and Finance.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Corporate

Governance Report (continued)

Ayman Adel Kamal - Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Kamal has over 28 years of experience in the financial sector,
of which the most recent have been in direct investments within his
capacity as Chief of Investments and Real Estate at Dubai Islamic
Bank. Mr. Kamal also has considerable experience within the fields
of corporate banking, real estate and investment.

Mr. Kamal holds numerous non-executive director board memberships
in both the financial and realty sectors, including in Bank of Khartoum
(Sudan), Saba Islamic Bank (Yemen), Ejar Cranes and Heavy
Equipment (UAE), Arab Heavy Equipment and Leasing (Saudi Arabia),
Modern Tanmia for Real Estate Investment (Egypt), Modern Tatweer
for Real Estate Investment (Egypt), Modern Tameer for Real Estate
Investment (Egypt), and Al Islami Aircraft Leasing (Bermuda).

Mr. Kamal holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance from Ain Shams
University in Cairo, Egypt

Talal Khalid Al Nisif - Board Member
Non-executive Director

A professional with more than 18 years experience in various banking,
finance and investment fields, Mr. Al-Nisif heads the Private Banking
Department at Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait), considered one of the
leading Islamic banks in the region.

Mr. Al-Nisif is a member on the executive committee for enhancement
of fund’s base and a chartered wealth manager and a registered
financial specialist from the American Academy of Financial
Management.

Mr. Al-Nisif serves as a member of various companies including
KFH Asset Management SDN BHD (Malaysia), Aviation Lease and
Finance Co. (ALAFCO) (Kuwait), and Al Salam International Hospital
Co. (Kuwait).

Mr. Al-Nisif graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Kuwait University.

Saleh Turky Al-Khamees- Board Member
Non-executive Director

A holder of a Master Degree in Business Administration from Kuwait
Maastricht Business School and a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals.

Mr. Al-Khamees joined GIH in 2001 and is currently the Vice President
of Investment Funds. Prior to that, Mr. Al-Khamees worked at National
Industrial Group (NIC). Mr. Al-Khamees is also a Board Member of
Arkan Al-Kuwait Co.

Adel Yaqoob Al-Nafisi - Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has over 33 years experience in the real estate market,
he is currently the Managing Director of Yagoob Al Nafisi & Sons
Company in Kuwait.

Prior to this he held managerial positions at Al-Nafisi Trading Company
and Commercial Portfolio Company (Kuwait). Mr. Al-Nafisi served as
a board member of International Financial Advisors Company (IFA)
a listed Company on the Kuwaiti Stock Exchange and is also a
member of the Foreign Investment Company Committee of (IFA). He
also served as a Board Member of the Real Estate Construction &
Manufacturing Co. (Kuwaiti closed joint stock company).

Mr. Al-Nafisi holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration
from the University of Cairo.

Jamal Abdulrahman Al-Rowaiyeh - Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al-Rowaiyeh has over 25 years of experience in the real estate
sector, managing the extensive Al-Rowaiyeh family real estate
portfolio.

He also holds the position of General Manager in Razan General
Trading and Contracting and Razan International Real Estate
specializing in various real estate trading, acquisitions, leasing and
management of properties.

Mr. Al-Rowaiyeh also founded and contributed to a number of project
funds in various sectors such as real estate, industrial and finance
with a regional spread in Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, Lebanon, Dubai and
Oman.

Mr. Al-Rowaiyeh graduated in 1980 with Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration Faculty of Commerce and Economics and Political
Science from Kuwait University.

Faisal Abdulla Al-Khazam - Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al Khazam has served as Chairman of Gulf Investment House
since 2004, and has over 35 years of experience in the field.

Mr. Al Khazam holds graduate degrees from both the Military College
in Kuwait and from Staff College in London.

Mr. Al Khazam’s previous engagements include a post as Board
Chairman and Managing Director of the Kuwaiti Livestock Trading
and Transport Company, as Director of Real Estate Management
in Kuwait Finance House, and Acting Director of the Department of
Officer Affairs in the Kuwaiti armed forces .

Mr. Al Khazam, has also held Board memberships in a variety of other
companies.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Corporate

Governance Report (continued)

Executive Committee Members
e Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi (Chairman of the committee)
e Ahmed Al-Qattan (Vice Chairman)
e Ayman Adel Kamal (Member)
e Talal Khalid Al Nisif (Member)
e Saleh Turky Al-Khamees (Member)

Audit Committee Members
e Fareed Soud Al Fozan (Chairman of the committee)
e Adel Yagoob Al-Nafisi (Vice Chairman)
e Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh (Member)
e Faisal Abdulla Al-Khazam (Member)

Remuneration Committee Members
e Faisal Abdulla Al-Khazam (Chairman of the committee)
e Adel Yagoob Al-Nafisi (Vice Chairman)
e Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh (Member)
e Ayman Adel Kamal (Member)

Shariah Advisor
Sh. Dr. Fareed Mohammed Hadi

Executive Managment
¢ Dr. Khalid Abdulla - Chief Executive Officer
e Hazim Buali - Executive Director Investment
e Sushil K. R. Jain - Executive Director Investment
e Mohamed Abdulla Isa - Chief Financial Officer
e Mohammed Abdul Khalig - Executive Director Business
Development & Administration

Management Committees

The board delegates the authority and responsibility of day to
day management to the CEO, who in turn uses a number of
cross-functional teams to ensure financial and non-financial
performance:

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee manages the asset and
liability structure of Inovest, as well as the liquidity and the
funding strategy of the Company. This involves monitoring
and reviewing the financial risks and ensuring that appropriate
strategies exist for management of the Company’s assets,
liabilities and capital.

Executive Management Committee
The Executive Management Committee ensures the general
oversight of the Company’s business in terms of strategic
administrative, financial, legal, compliance, and information
technology amongst other areas.

Investment Management Committee

The Investment Management Committee oversees the
management’s investment and exit proposals for the
Company’s short term and long term investments.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing the
group’s risk management culture and ensuring that an effective
framework is in place. Risk is an inherent part of Inovest’s
businesses and acknowledging and managing appropriate
risk levels is critical to the Company’s continuing success and
profitability. As such, Inovest proactively identifies, assesses,
manages and monitors risks in its decisions and operations
with specific consideration to credit risk, market risk, liquidity,
and operational risk. Active involvement of the Board and
senior management in the risk management process is vital to
the development of an effective control environment.

Internal Control

In pursuing its strategy and business plan, Inovest inevitably
relies on its internal control to provide reasonable, though not
absolute, assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial
statements. The company has invested in ensuring the means
of safeguarding, verifying and maintaining accountability. The
internal control also works to detect fraud, potential liability,
loss as well as material misstatements, while complying with
applicable laws and regulations.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Corporate
Governance Report (continued

Inovest's Organizational Chart

Board of Directors

Remuneration Committee| Board Executive

Audit Committee

Sharia'a Advisor

Committee

Board Secretary

rman Internal Audit

Vice Chairman &
Managing Director

Risk
Management

Chief Executive

Officer
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Management

Business
Investment Human Capital
Placment

Finance Information
Development

Technology

lient

Wealth o :
Relationship

Management

Management

Reporting &
Investment
Coordination

Venture Capital
& Direct
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Communiction Operation

Private Equity &
Post Acquisition

Rael Estate
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Shariah Advisor's Report on the Activities
of Inovest BSC

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful, Prayers and Peace upon the Last Apostle and Messenger,
Our Prophet Mohammed, His Comrades and Relatives.

The Sharia’a Advisor of Inovest BSC has reviewed the Company activities and compared them with the
issued Fatwa and Rulings during the financial year ending 31st December 2009 and found them compatible
with them.

The Sharia’a Advisor believes that he has expressed his opinion in respect of the activities carried out by
Inovest and it is the responsibility of the management to ensure the implementation of such decisions.

A representative of the Company’s management explained and clarified the contents of the Financial
Statement for the year ending 31st December 2009. The report of the Sharia’a Advisor has been prepared
based on the information provided by the Company.

The Advisor is satisfied that the activities and services carried out by Inovest are in compliance with the
Glorious Islamic Sharia’a.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds. Prayers be upon Prophet Mohammed (Peace be Upon Him) all His
Family and Companions.

. I

SH. Dr. Fareed Mohammed Hadi
Sharia’a Advisor

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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IBDO

BDO Jawad Habib
Public Accountants
Management Consultants

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders’

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Inovest BSC (“the Company”) and
its subsidiary undertakings (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2009, the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of sources and
uses of charity fund for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements comprising of a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Directors and auditors

These consolidated financial statements and the Company’s undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic
Sharia’a rules and principles are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Group. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2009, and of the results of its consolidated operations,
the changes in its consolidated cash flows and sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic
Financial Institutions and Sharia’a rules and principles as determined by the Sharia’a Advisor of the Group.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Further, as required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001, Decree Number 21 of 2001, in the case
of the Company, we report that:

(1) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(2) the Company has maintained proper books of account and the financial statements are in agreement
therewith; and

(8) the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the
Company.

In addition, we report that nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has
breached any of the applicable provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001, Decree Number
21 of 2001, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law 2006, or of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association, which would materially affect its activities, or its financial position as at 31 December 2009.

BD o

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
3 February 2010

90621

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2009 2008
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8 36,955 99,414
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 9 - 6,764
Trade and other receivables 10 107,957 131,588
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 3,148 3,768
Available-for-sale investments 12 32,419 29,092
Investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings 13 99,907 80,941
Investment properties 14 139,998 173,955
Properties under development 15 3,417 -
Plant and equipment 16 4,719 2,051
Total assets 428,520 527,573
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 120,400 172,985
liara and Murabaha financing 18 70,473 101,504
Total liabilities 190,873 274,489
EQUITY
Share capital 19 107,107 97,370
Less: treasury shares 19 (1,488) (2,973)
105,619 94,397
Share premium 29,962 27,345
Statutory reserve 20 21,473 20,340
Share option reserve 20 1,144 1,634
Retained earnings 79,449 109,368
Total equity 237,647 253,084
Total liabilities and equity 428,520 527,573

These financial statements, set out on pages 16 to 52, were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 3 February 2010 and signed on its
behalf by:

~—ea? ]

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi Ahmed Al-Qattan
Chairman Vice-Chairman and Managing Director

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2009 2008
Income

Income from properties 21 3,176 98,452
Income from investments 22 1,891 8,856
Income from advisory services 23 10,953 2,316
Net income from construction contracts 24 10,551 4,814
Income from sale of lease/project rights 25 11,162 685
Share of profit from investment in a joint venture/ associated undertakings 13 1,937 16,411
Other income 26 397 2,228
Total income 40,067 133,762

Expenses
Staff costs 27 (8,050) (24,675)
General and administrative expenses (7,087) (7,361)
liara and Murabaha financing costs (7,049) (5,334)
Lease payments (8,791) (3,800)
Property related expenses (935) (619)
Depreciation 16 (727) (594)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale-investments 12 (1,100 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets - (218)
Total expenses (28,739) (42,601)
Net profit for the year 11,328 91,161
Basic and diluted earnings per share 28 4.32 cents 35.15 cents

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi
Chairman

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Ahmed Al-Qattan

Vice-Chairman and Managing Director
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of change of equity for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Share

Share  Treasury Share Statutory . Retained
Notes ) . option . Total
capital shares  premium reserve earnings
reserve

At 31 December 2007 91,000 (3,336) 26,775 11,224 1,679 57,212 184,554
Net profit for the year - - - - - 91,161 91,161
Bonus shares issued 19 6,370 (234) - - - (6,136) -
Dividends paid (2007) 19 - - - - - (22,750) (22,750)
Directors’ remuneration (2007) 19 - - - - - (387) (387)
Transferred to statutory reserve 20 - - - 9,116 - (9,116) -
Shares issued to employees - 597 186 - - (116) 667
Transferred to §hare premium ) ) 384 ) (384) ) )
from share option reserve
Stock option charge 27 - - - - 339 - 339
Transferred to charity fund
(2007) 19 - - - - - (500) (500)
At 31 December 2008 97,370 (2,973) 27,345 20,340 1,634 109,368 253,084
Net profit for the year - - - - - 11,328 11,328
Bonus shares issued 19 9,737 (297) - - - (9,440) -
Dividends paid (2008) 19 - - - - - (29,211) (29,211)
Directors’ remuneration (2008) 19 - - - - - (585) (585)
Transferred to statutory reserve 20 - - - 1,133 - (1,133) -
Shares issued to employees - 1,782 1,107 - - (878) 2,511
Transferred to ;hare premium ) B 1,510 ) (1,510) ) )
from share option reserve
Stock option charge 27 - - - - 1,020 - 1,020
Transferred to charity fund
(2008) 19 - - - - - (500) (500)
At 31 December 2009 107,107 (1,488) 29,962 21,473 1,144 79,449 237,647

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of cash hows for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000's)

31 December

31 December

Notes 2009 2008
Operating activities
Net profit for the year 11,328 91,161
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 16 1,194 594
Stock option charge 27 1,020 339
Share of profit from investment in a joint venture / associated undertakings 13 (1,937) (16,411)
ljara and Murabaha financing costs 7,049 5,334
profit/(Loss) on sale of plant and equipment 9 (14)
Exchange losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 62 83
Realised gains on sale of investment properties 21 (1,001) (69,820)
Unrealised fair value losses/(gains) on investment properties 21 3,617 (24,470)
Realised gains on sale of available-for-sale investments 22 - (5,856)
Unrealised fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 557 20
Realised fair value gains on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 (272) -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets = 218
Impairment loss on available -for-sale investments 12 1,100 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Properties under development 15 (799) -
Trade and other receivables 23,631 (95,185)
Trade and other payables (52,585) 100,627
Long-term payables - 55,293
Cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (7,021) 41,913
liara and Murabaha financing costs paid (7,049) (5,334)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (14,070) 36,579
Investing activities
Purchase of available-for-sale investments 12 (4,532) (18,485)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 (8,403) -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments 105 22,018
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 3,676 102
Purchase of share in a joint venture/associated undertakings 13 - (20,040)
Dividends received from a joint venture/associated undertakings 13 9,629 -
Purchase of investment properties 14 - (274,146)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 2,060 234,513
Net movement in Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 6,764 (6,764)
Purchase of plant and equipment 16 (4,003) (2,012)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 132 39
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 10,428 (64,775)
Financing activities
Net (repayment of)/proceeds from ljara and Murabaha financing (81,031) 93,660
Dividends paid 19 (29,211) (22,750)
Shares issued to employees 2,510 666
Directors’ remuneration paid 19 (585) (387)
Contribution to charity fund 19 (500) (500)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (58,817) 70,689
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (62,459) 42,493
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 99,414 56,921
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 8 36,955 99,414

Non-cash transactions:

The disposal transaction of investment properties (Note 14) and additions to investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings
(Note 13) have been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows as being non-cash transactions.
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

31 December

31 December

2009 2008
Sources of charity fund
Contribution by the Company 500 500
Total sources 500 500
Uses of charity fund
Contributions to charitable activities (80) (314)
Total uses (30) (314)
Excess of sources over uses 470 186
Undistributed charity funds at 1 January 670 484
Undistributed charity fund at 31 December 1,140 670

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

1. Organisation and activities

Inovest BSC (“the Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings comprise (“the Group”). The Company is a Bahraini public
shareholding company registered with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain and operates under
commercial registration number 48848 obtained on 18 June 2002. The Company commenced commercial operations on
1 October 2002. Under the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the duration of the Company is for 50
years, renewable for further similar periods unless terminated earlier by the operation of law or as provided in the Articles of
Association.

The Company is listed on the Bahrain Stock Exchange and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

The Company has been issued an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) by the Central Bank of
Bahrain (CBB), to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles, and is regulated by the CBB.

The principal activities of the Company include:

- Engaging directly in all types of investments, including direct investment, securities, and the various types of investment
funds;

- Establishing and managing various investment funds;

- Dealing in financial instruments in the local, regional and international markets;

- Providing information and studies related to different types of investments for others;

- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others;

- Establishing joint ventures with real estate, industrial and services companies inside or outside the Kingdom of Bahrain
and commiting to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles and

- Having an interest or participating in any way with companies and other entities engaged in similar activities that
may work and co-operate to achieve the Company’s objectives inside and outside the Kingdom of Bahrain, and also
merge its activities with the abovementioned entities and/or buy or join with them.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2009 was 388 (31 December 2008: 391).

The registered office of the Company is in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

2. Subsidiary undertakings

The details of the Company’s investment in subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Net profit/
. Proportion Total assets at  (loss) for the
Er?éne?'tgfkit:e subsidiary ingg:n;?al\t?;n of ownership  Principal activities 31 December year ended
9 P interest % 2009 31 December
2009
Land and real estate
Tameer Real Estate Agencies Kingdom of 99 agents involved in 5 (15)
WLL Bahrain property buying and
selling
A company
established to hold
. . the Group’s shares
Tameer for Private ngdom of 99 on behalf of its 2704 )
Management WLL Bahrain .
employees in respect
of the employees’
stock option plan
) ) Management and
ggé%?q Development Co. K'g%ﬂf;?ﬂ"f 99.98 development of 249,449 3,726
properties
First Gulf Real Estate Co. Kingdom of %5 hfjaeT,ae?sn;f:r:tagfd i i
WLL Saudi Arabia pme
properties
Al Loozi Housing Kingdom of Management and
Development WLL Bahrain 9 development of i )
properties
BIW Business Park Kingdom of 99 h{ljz@aeglg()en:fgr:tagfd ) )
Development Company WLL Bahrain P

properties

The total assets and net profit/(loss) for the year of the subsidiary undertakings have been extracted
from audited financial statements prepared as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2009.

The Group does not consolidate its investment in First Gulf Real Estate Co. WLL, Al Loozi Housing Development WLL and BIW
Business Park Development Company WLL as the Group does not obtain any significant benefit from their activities and the
investments are held only on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of third parties.

On 1 July 2009, the Company increased the paid-up capital of Al Khaleej Development Co.BSC (c) , a fully-owned subsidiary,
from US$1 million to US$ 53.050 million by making an in-kind contribution through the transfer of three fully-owned subsidiary
undertakings; namely, Bahrain Investment Wharf BSC (c), Tamcon Contracting Co. BSC (c) and Paramount Properties Facility
Management Co.WLL. Accordingly, with effect from 1 July 2009, these three companies’ financial statements have been
consolidated with Al Khaleej Development Co. BSC (c). This transfer does not affect the financial position of the Group as a

whole.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary undertakings have been consolidated as though the Company owns
100% of these subsidiary undertakings, as the other shareholders, hold their shares on behalf, and for the beneficial interest,

of the Company.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) issued
by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“the AAOIFI”), the Bahrain Commercial Companies
Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001 and the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law 2006. For matters which are not
covered by the AAQIFI standards, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have been applied.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments in joint
venture/associated undertakings which are equity accounted and available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and investment properties which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Functional currency
United States Dollars is the Group’s functional currency and also the currency in which the Company’s share capital is
denominated. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in United States Dollars.

4. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the group comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings,
after elimination of all inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between the
group companies. Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the costs cannot be recovered.
Accounting policies of subsidiary undertakings have been changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Entities controlled by the Group by virtue of holding more than fifty percent of the voting shares are considered as subsidiary
undertakings. Entities over which the Group has significant influence and which are not subsidiary undertakings are considered
either as associated undertakings or joint ventures. Associated undertakings include entities in which the Group holds twenty
percent or more of the voting share capital. A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control. The Group’s share of income in associated undertakings/joint ventures is accounted
for using the equity method.

The Group does not consolidate its holdings in those entities from which it does not obtain any benefit from its activities and the
investment is held only on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of third parties.

Although the Company has an Investment Business Firm License - Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the Central Bank of
Bahrain (CBB) in September 2008, it continued to hold real estate assets and revenues and costs in its financial statements, These
assets existed prior to obtaining the license from the CBB, The Company has transferred some of its real estate assets and the
related revenues and costs and is in the process of transferring the remaining real estate assets and related revenues to its fully
owned subsidiary undertaking, Al Khaleej Development Co. BSC (c), which primarily carries out real estate and construction related
activities. Since this subsidiary is fully owned by the Company, the real estate assets and revenues and costs continue to appear in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009. Notes 14, 15, 18, 21 and 24 in these
consolidated financial statements reflect the Group’s transactions arising from holding of real estate assets and their corresponding
liabilities and revenues and costs arising therefrom.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements is set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and Murabaha deposits which have a maturity period of 90 days or less.

Murabaha investments and profit

Murabaha investments are accounted for at cost plus margin ‘sales price’. The gains and losses which result from murabaha
transactions, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the related contracts. Murabaha
investments usually have maturity periods of less than 90 days.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated realisable values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. Bad debts are written-off during the year in which they are identified.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or if so designated by
management. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at cost and subsequently re-measured at
their fair values. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are included in the consolidated
statement of income in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
These include investments in certain quoted or unquoted securities that the Group will not hold till maturity. Available-for-sale
investments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Any changes in fair values of such
investments subsequent to initial recognition are included in the fair value reserve as a part of shareholders’ equity.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Cost of purchase includes transaction costs. Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Fair value of investments listed on active markets is determined by reference to the quoted market
prices. The fair value of unquoted securities, where available, is the Group’s proportionate share of the net assets of the
investee company. In the absence of active markets or other appropriate methods from which to derive reliable fair values, the
unquoted securities are stated at cost.

Investment in joint venture

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities, being entities in which two or more parties contractually agree to share control
over an economic activity, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as the Group’s management believes that
it exercises joint control, that is the power, directly or indirectly, to jointly govern the financial and operating policies of the jointly
controlled entities. Equity accounting involves recording the interest in the jointly controlled entity, initially at cost, and adjusting it for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the results of operations of the jointly controlled entity. The equity method is
applied from the date on which the Group assumes joint control over an entity, and ceases when joint control is relinquished.

Investment in associated undertakings

The Group’s investment in associated undertakings is accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Associated
undertakings are entities in which the Group has an interest of between 20% and 50% and has significant influence and which
is neither a subsidiary undertaking nor a joint venture.

The investments in associated undertakings are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-
acquisition changes, less any impairment in value. The consolidated statement of income reflects the share of the results of
operations of the associated undertakings. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the associated undertakings
equity, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, where applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity.

Investment properties
Investment properties represent properties (land or building or both) held by the Group to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both.

Initially, investment properties are measured at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at their fair values. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the consolidated statement of income in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when they have either been disposed of, or when the investment property is permanently

withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition.
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process of construction
and development for its future sale. Properties under development are valued at cost and include expenditure incurred in the normal
course of developing and constructing the property.

Properties under development are derecognised when they have either been disposed-off, or when the property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of a property
under development are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition.

Plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation
Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of plant and equipment to their estimated residual values
over their expected useful lives as follows:

Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Gains and losses on disposal of plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into
account in determining net profit.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the consolidated statement of income when the expenditure is incurred.

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amounts, the plant and equipment are written-down to their recoverable amounts.

Islamic financing

Islamic financing towards ljara and Murabaha financing are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. In subsequent periods, these are stated at amortised cost, and any differences between proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the repayment amounts are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the financing.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier
or not.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions when it has a present legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefits as a result
of past events, and a reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each consolidated statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence that an asset is
impaired. Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency by a
borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a
group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults in the Group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

a) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

In the case of investments in equity securities classified as available-for-sale and measured at fair value, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
income is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of income on equity instruments are not subsequently reversed through the consolidated statement
of income. For available-for-sale investments carried at cost, the Group makes an assessment of whether there is an objective
evidence of impairment for each investment by assessment of financial and other operating and economic indicators. Impairment
is recognised if the estimated recoverable amount is assessed to be below the cost of the investment.

b) Impairment of other non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets or its cash generating unit, other than financial assets, are reviewed at each consolidated
statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. A cash generating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the greater
of its value in use or fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income. Impairment losses are reversed only if there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Dividends and board remuneration
Dividends to shareholders and board remuneration are recognised in the period in which they are declared.

Treasury shares

Shares of the Company reacquired at the statement of financial position date are designated as treasury shares until these are
reissued or cancelled. The nominal value of the treasury shares is shown as a deduction from share capital with the difference
between the nominal value of the shares and the purchase cost being adjusted against the capital reserve. The gains or losses on
sale of treasury shares are recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments

The Group operates a share-based incentive scheme for its employees (“the scheme”) whereby employees are granted
the Group’s shares as compensation on achievement of certain non-market based performance conditions and
additional service conditions (the ‘vesting conditions’)

Equity instruments under the share based transactions are measured as the difference between the fair value of the
share-based payment and the fair value of the identifiable services received at the grant date. The cost of equity-settled
transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (‘the vesting date’).

Revenue recognition

a) Income from sale of lease/project rights

Income from sale of lease/project rights is usually recognised when the Group obtains from investors legally binding
and irrevocable commitments to subscribe to investments promoted by the Group. The Group then recognises revenue
based on the pro-rata amounts of such signed subscription agreements as at the consolidated statement of financial
position date, and the terms specified in the related Private Placement Memorandum.

b) Advisory services income and project management fees

Income from advisory services and project management fees is recognised based on the stage of completion of the
service at the consolidated statement of financial position date by reference to the contractual terms between the
parties.

¢) Rental income
Property rental and service charge income, arising from the letting out of investment properties to tenants, is recorded
based on the agreement entered into with the tenants and is recognised on the accruals basis.

d) Contract income and costs
Contract income is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to
the stage of physical completion of the contract. Contract income and costs are recognised as income and expenses
in the consolidated statement of income in the accounting year in which the work is performed. The contract income
is matched with the contract costs incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the reporting of income,
expenses and profit which can be attributed to the proportion of work completed. Profits expected to be realised on
construction contracts are based on estimates of total income and cost at completion.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract income is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred up to the year-end where it is probable those costs will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised when incurred. The excess of progress billings over contract costs is classified under trade and other
payables as due to customers for construction contracts.

Losses on contracts are assessed on an individual contract basis and if estimates of cost to complete the construction
contracts indicate losses, provision is made for the full losses anticipated in the period in which they are first identified.

Amounts due to customers for construction contracts represent the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits
and progress billings for contracts in progress, where progress billings exceed costs incurred, plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses). Where contract costs computed using the percentage of completion method exceed progress
billings incurred at the year-end, the balance is shown as amounts due from customers for construction contracts.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000's)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Property management fees
Property management fees are recorded based on agreements entered into with the owners of the property and is recognised
on the accruals basis.

f) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

g) Other income
Other income is accounted for on the accruals basis, unless collectibility is in doubt.

Earnings prohibited by Sharia’a
The Group is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-Islamic
income is credited to a charity account where the Group uses these funds for charitable means.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods, these
are stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any differences between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably

Post employment benefits

Employee benefits and entitlements to annual leave, holiday, air passage and other short-term benefits are recognised as they
accrue to the employees. The Group contributes to the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals administered by the Social
Insurance Organisation in the Kingdom of Bahrain. This is a defined contribution pension plan and the Group’s contributions
are charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year to which they relate. In respect of this plan, the Group has a
legal obligation to pay the contributions as they fall due and no obligation exists to pay the future benefits.

The expatriate employees of the Group are paid leaving indemnity in accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Labour Law.
The Group accrues for its liability in this respect on an annual basis.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Gains and
losses arising from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation, at the year-end rates, of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers. The chief operating decision makers have been identified as the Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer.

6. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

Preparation of the financial statements requires the Group’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The determination of estimates
requires judgments which are based on historical experience, current and expected economic conditions, and all other available
information. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to:

- economic useful lives of plant and equipment;
- classification of investments;

— fair valuation of investments;

- special purpose entities;

- impairment of investments;

- valuation of investment properties;

- power to exercise significant influence;

- legal proceedings;

- provisions; and

- contingencies.

Economic useful life of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are based on the management’s estimates
of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness. Changes to
estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying value and amounts charged to the consolidated statement of income
in specific periods.

The Group’s plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their economic useful lives.

Economic useful lives of plant and equipment are reviewed by management periodically. The review is based on the current
condition of the assets and the estimated period during which they will continue to bring economic benefit to the Group.

Classification of investments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment whether
it should be classified as investments designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity or
available-for-sale investment securities. The classification of each investment reflects the management’s intention in relation to
each investment and is subject to different accounting treatments based on such classification.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair valuation of investments

The Group determines fair values of investments that are not quoted in active markets by using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flows and recent transaction prices. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market
conditions and information about the investee companies. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgement and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. There is no certainty about future events
(such as continued operating profits and financial strengths). It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes
within the next financial year are different from assumptions that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investments. In case where discounted cash flow models have been used to estimate fair values, the future cash flows have been
estimated by the management based on information from and discussions with representatives of the management of the investee
companies, and based on the latest available audited and un-audited financial statements.

Special Purpose Entities

The Group sponsors the formation of Special Purpose Entities (SPE's) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients to hold investments.
The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to these SPE’s, which involve the
Group making decisions on behalf of such entities. The Group administers and manages these entities on behalf of its clients, who
are by and large third parties and are the economic beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The Group does not consolidate
SPE’s that it does not have the power to control and the entities are held on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of third parties. In
determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgments are made about the objectives of the SPE’s activities,
its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group’s intention and ability to make operational decisions for the SPE
and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.

Impairment of investments

The Group determines that investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment and is assessed for each investment separately. In
case of quoted equity securities, the Group considers a decline of more than 30% in the fair value below cost to be significant and
considers a decline below cost which persists for more than 6 months as prolonged.

Where fair values are not readily available and the investments are carried at cost, the recoverable amount of such investment
is estimated to a test for impairment. A significant portion of the Group’s available-for-sale investments comprise of investments
in long-term real estate development projects. In making a judgment of impairment, the Group evaluates among other factors,
evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the project, impacts of delays in execution, industry and sector performance,
changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that the
current assessment of impairment could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the investments within the next
financial year due to significant changes in the assumptions underlying such assessments.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group obtains valuations performed by external valuers in order to determine the fair value of its investment properties.
These valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, anticipated maintenance costs and the appropriate
discount rate. The valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The level of activity in the investment property market has been at a low level for the past twelve months, primarily because of
the reduced availability of credit and global market conditions.

The lack of comparable market transactions has resulted in a greater level of professional judgement being relied upon in
arriving at valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could have a significant impact on the fair values presented.
Further information in relation to the valuation of investment properties is disclosed in Note 14 to these consolidated financial
statements.
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds over 20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and the Group does not exercise significant influence, the
investment is treated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. More information is disclosed in Note 11 to these
consolidated financial statements. Where the Group holds more than 50% of the voting rights and exercises only temporary
control or joint control, the investment is treated either as investment in joint venture or available-for-sale investments. Details
are given in Notes 12 and 13 to these consolidated financial statements.

Legal proceedings

The Group recognises a provision where there is a present obligation from a past event, a transfer of economic benefits is
probable and the amount of costs of the transfer can be estimated reliably. In instances where the criteria are not met, a
contingent liability may be disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Obligations arising in respect of
contingent liabilities that have been disclosed, or those which are not currently recognised or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements could have a material effect on the Group’s financial position. Application of these accounting principles
to legal cases requires the Group’s management to make determinations about various factual and legal matters beyond its
control.

The Group reviews outstanding legal cases following developments in the legal proceedings at each reporting date, in order
to assess the need for provisions and disclosures in its consolidated financial statements. Among the factors considered
in making decisions on provisions are the nature of litigation, claims or assessment, the legal process and potential level of
damages in the jurisdiction in which the litigation, claims or assessment has been brought, the progress of the case (including
the progress after the date of the consolidated financial statements but before those statements are issued), the opinions or
views of legal advisers, experience on similar cases and any decision of the Group’s management as to how it will respond to
the litigation, claim or assessment.

Provisions

The Group creates provision for impaired receivables to account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers
to make the required payments. At 31 December 2009, in the opinion of the Group’s management, the provision for impaired
receivables amounted to US$780K (2008: US$455K) (Note 10). When evaluating the adequacy of the provision for impaired
receivables, management bases its estimate on current overall economic conditions, ageing of the accounts receivable
balances, historical write-off experience, customer creditworthiness and changes in payment terms. Changes in the economy,
industry or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the provision for impaired receivables recorded in these
consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies
By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of such
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates of the outcome of future events.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

7. Segmental information

Business segments — primary reporting segment

The Group’s primary segment reporting format is business segments. A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other business
segments. The Group’s primary business segments are:

e |nvestment and related services - This division is involved in investment and other related services. This division contributes the
largest proportion of the Group’s business generating 64% of the Group’s revenue.

e Construction contracts — This division is involved in undertaking construction contracts and contributes 27% of the Group’s
revenue.

* Development and sale of industrial plots — This division is involved in sale and development of industrial plots and contributes
8% of the Group’s revenue.

* Property and facility management services — This division is involved in facility management of the properties. The division is
the smallest of the Group’s four divisions and contributes 1% of the Group’s revenue.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2009

Investments Development Property
Construction and sale of and facility -
and related . ; Eliminations Total
- contracts industrial management
services .
plots services
Net revenues from external 22 638 10,551 0389 263 ) 35.841
customers
Inter-segment transactions - - - 207 (207) -
Income from investments 628 253 970 40 - 1,891
Share of profits/(losses) in
a Joint venture/associated 1,981 - (44) - - 1,937
undertakings (Note 13)
Other income 304 11 83 - - 398
Total revenues 25,551 10,815 3,398 510 (207) 40,067
Segment profit 625 9,626 1,347 (270) - 11,328
Reportable segment 489,553 23,787 140,137 1,001 (225,958) 428,520
assets
Reportable segment 193,707 8,937 95,608 107 (107,486) 190,873
liabilities
Other segment information
Depreciation (Note 16) 497 84 109 37 - 727
Investment in joint
venture/associated 89,774 - 10,133 - - 99,907

undertakings

Geographical segments — secondary reporting segment
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to
risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

7. Segmental information (continued)

Geographical segments — secondary reporting segment

The Group’s activities are restricted to investing in real estate projects and in private equity and property funds in the GCC and

the USA.

The following is a geographical distribution of the Group’s investments:

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

GCC USA GCC USA
Investment properties 139,998 = 173,955 -
Available-for-sale investments 31,719 700 28,287 805
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss J 3,148 B 3,768 B

8. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December

31 December

2009 2008

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits 30,595 95,025
Current account balances with banks 6,355 4,374
Cash on hand 5 15
36,955 99,414

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have maturity periods
of less than 90 days, and earn market rates of profit. The profits from Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits are recognised over

the period of the related investment.

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing.

9. Mudaraba and Murabaha investments

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have maturity periods of 360
days, and earn market rates of profit per annum receivable on maturity. The profits from Mudaraba and Murabaha investments

are recognised over the period of the related investment.

10. Trade and other receivables

31 December

31 December

2009 2008

Trade receivables 49,084 89,234
Amounts due from related parties (Note 29) 43,488 19,910
Prepayments and other receivables 6,841 2,718
Rents receivable 1,145 1,005
Advances to contractors and suppliers 8,179 19,181
108,737 132,043

Provision for impaired rents receivable (780) (455)
107,957 131,588

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000's)

10. Trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade and other receivables is as follows:

Lessthan 6 More than 6

Total
months months
At 31 December 2009 107,957 68,048 39,909
At 31 December 2008 131,588 98,534 33,054

Unimpaired trade receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. In the opinion of the
management, the fair values of the Group’s trade and other receivables are not expected to be significantly different from their
carrying values.

The trade receivables stated at a carrying amount of US$10.387 million are secured as guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha
financing facilities obtained (Note 18).

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.
The Group’s trade receivables are primarily denominated in Bahrain Dinar.

The movement in the Group’s provision for impaired receivables is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2009 2008
Opening balance 455 455
Provision for impaired rents receivable 762 -
Written-off during the year (437) -
Closing balance 780 455

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in “general and administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written-off when there is no
expectation of recovering the related receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

11. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
Opening balance 3,768 3,973
Purchases during the year 3,403 -
Disposals during the year (3,676) (102)
Unrealised fair value losses recognised in the consolidated statement of income (657) (20)
Realised fair value gains recognised in the consolidated statement of income 272 -
Net foreign exchange losses (62) (83)
Closing balance 3,148 3,768

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

11. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of the following:

31 December 31 December
2009 2008
Shares in a property fund 3,148 3,768

Although the Group has a 25% ownership interest in the property fund; the investment has been reflected as a financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss rather than an investment in an associated undertaking as this investment is held to generate
short-term gains and the Group does not exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies of this fund.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in Kuwait Dinar.

The fair values of the funds are based on their current market prices in an active market.

12. Available-for-sale investments

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Opening balance 29,092 57,275

Purchases during the year 4,532 18,485

Transferred to investment in joint venture/associated undertakings and subsidiary - (81,171)
undertakings

Disposals during the year (105) (15,497)

33,519 29,092

Impairment loss for the year (1,100) -

Closing balance 32,419 29,092

Available-for-sale investments include investments in unlisted companies whose shares are not traded on active markets. The
investments are primarily in closely held companies located in the Gulf Co-operation Council countries (GCC) and the United
States of America (USA). In the Group management’s opinion, the fair values of these investments are not significantly different
from their carrying values at 31 December 2009.

The available-for-sale investments stated at a carrying amount of US$8.289 million are secured as guarantee against the ljara and
Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 18).

The movement in impairment loss on available-for-sale investments is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Charge for the year and at 31 December 1,100 -

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

13. Investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
Opening balance 80,941 13,982
Transferred from available-for-sale investments - 30,508
Dividends received during the year (9,629) -
Additions during the year 26,658 20,040
Net share of profits from investment in associated undertakings 1,937 16,411
Closing balance 99,907 80,941
Details of the Group’s investment in associated undertakings are as follows:
Name of the associated undertaking Country of Description of shares Percentage of ownership
registration held interest
2009 2008
! ) Ordinary shares of
Tala Property Development WLL Kingdom of Bahrain BD1,000 each 60% 60%
. Ordinary shares of
Durrat Marina  Investment Company Ltd. Cayman Islands BD1 each 05.78% 55.78%
. ) . Ordinary shares of
BIW Labour Accommodation WLL Kingdom of Bahrain BD 100 each 57.08% 57.08%
: Ordinary shares of
Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. Cayman Islands US$10 each 08.66% 8.66%
Dannat Resort Development Cavman Islands Ordinary shares of
Company Ltd. Y SR1 each 35.76% -

The Group has a 60% (2008: 60%) shareholding in Tala Property Development WLL, a limited liability company registered
with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain, whose principal activities are property management,
development and maintenance and purchase and sale of properties. Although the Group has a 60% shareholding in Tala
Property Development Company WLL, the investment has been considered as an investment in a joint venture rather than as
a subsidiary undertaking, primarily because the Group exercises joint control. Accordingly, the results of operations and assets
and liabilities have not been consolidated and the interest in this joint venture has been recognised using the equity method of
accounting.

In 2008, the Group invested US$9.87 million in Durrat Marina Investment Company Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands, to acquire a 16.74% ownership interest. Subsequently the Group’s shareholding in Durrat Marina
Investment Company Ltd. increased to 25.78%. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in Durrat Marina Investment Company
Ltd. has been treated as an associated undertaking in these consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s shareholding in BIW Labour Accommodation WLL, a limited liability company registered
with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain, amounted to 6.26%. However, one of the subsidiary
undertakings of the Group, Bahrain Investment Wharf BSC (c), holds 20.82% shares in BIW Labour Accommodation WLL.
Therefore, the effective ownership interest of the Group in BIW Labour Accommodation WLL as at 31 December 2008
amounted to 27.08%. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in BIW Labour Accommodation WLL has been treated as an
associated undertaking in these consolidated financial statements.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000's)

13. Investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings (continued)

In 2008 the Group invested US$4.4 million in Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands, to acquire a 14.95% ownership interest. Subsequently the Group’s shareholding increased to 28.66% and,
accordingly, the Group’s investment in Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. has been treated as an associated undertaking in these
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group invested US$26.66 million in Dannat Resort Development Company Ltd., a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, to acquire a 35.76% ownership interest. The Group’s contribution in the
associated undertaking was made partly by way of an in-kind transfer of ownership of certain investment properties (Note 14).

Summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in joint venture/associated undertakings as extracted from the
audited financial statements prepared as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2009 is as follows:

31 31

December December

2009 2008

Total assets 377,881 303,381
Total liabilities (56,406) (42,738)
Net assets 321,475 260,643
Group’s share in the net assets 99,907 80,941
Operating profit for the year 3,991 49,076
Net profit for the year 2,330 47,232
Group’s share in the net profit 1,937 16,411

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group received dividend from the investment in a joint venture/associated
undertakings amounting to US$9.629 million (2008: US$NIl).

The investment in joint venture/associated undertakings stated at a carrying amount of US$13.723 miillion are secured as guarantee
against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 18).

14. Investment properties

31 31

December December

2009 2008

Opening balance 173,955 40,031

Purchases during the year - 274,146

Disposals during the year (27,716) (164,692)

Transferred to properties under development (Note 15) (2,624) -

Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties recognised in the consolidated (3.617) 24,470
statement of income

Closing balance 139,998 173,955

Investment properties are stated at their fair values that have been determined based on valuations performed by independent
property valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on open market values, which represent the prices at which the properties
could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing buyers and knowledgeable willing sellers in an arm’s length transaction.

The disposals during the year ended 31 December 2009 includes certain properties amounting to US$26.66 million transferred to
one of the associated undertakings of the Group as their share in the investment contribution.

The investment properties stated at a carrying amount of US$111.251 million are secured as guarantee against the ljara and
Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 18).

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

15. Properties under development

31 31
December December
2009 2008
Opening balance - -
Transferred from investment properties (Note 14) 2,624 -
Costs incurred during the year 793 -
Closing balance 3,417 -
16. Plant and equipment
Ma_c hinery Computer
equipment, Motor
. hardware and . Total
furniture and vehicles
. software
fixtures
Cost
At 31 December 2007 728 350 326 1,404
Additions 1,027 411 574 2,012
Disposals (1) (1) (50) (52)
At 31 December 2008 1,754 760 850 3,364
Additions 2,962 866 175 4,003
Disposals (830) (156) (131) 617)
At 31 December 2009 4,386 1,470 894 6,750
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2007 439 234 74 747
Charge for the year 230 169 195 594
Disposals - - (28) (28)
At 31 December 2008 669 403 241 1,313
Charge for the year 653 243 298 1,194
Disposals (299) (92) (85) (476)
At 31 December 2009 1,023 554 454 2,031
Net book amount
At 31 December 2009 3,363 916 440 4,719
At 31 December 2008 1,085 357 609 2,051

The Group operates from premises leased at an average monthly rent of US$133 thousand (2008: US$96 thousand per month).

The depreciation charge for the year is allocated as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Depreciation charged to contract costs (Note 24) 467 -
Depreciation charged to expenses 727 594
1,194 594

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

17. Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Trade payables 86,222 122,857
Amounts due to related parties (Note 29) 9,278 15,140
Accruals and other payables 23,651 34,662
Retentions payable 1,233 275
Rents received in advance 16 51
120,400 172,985

Current portion of trade and other payables (69,616) (117,692)
Long-term payables 50,784 55,293

Trade payables are generally payable within 60 to 90 days of the suppliers’ invoice date
The long-term payables represent lease rent payables relating to one of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company.

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.

18. ljara and Murabaha financing

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
Non-current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing
liara payable (a) 5,305 5,305
Murabaha payable (b) 26,525 48,684
31,830 53,989
Current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing
ljara payable (c) 4,548 5,685
Murabaha payable (d) (e) & (f) 34,095 41,830
38,643 47,515
Total ljara and Murabaha financing 70,473 101,504
a) liara payable represents an ljara financing facility obtained from a local bank amounting to US$5.305 million to finance

the purchase of a plot of land. The amount is repayable in one single installment due in October 2011.

b) During the previous year, the Group obtained Murabaha financing facility from a local bank amounting to US$26.525
million to finance the acquisition of investments and for working capital requirements. The amount was repayable in
one single installment due in April 2010 which has now been rescheduled and the amount is payable in 5 semi-annual
installments starting from April 2011, the last installment falling due in April 2013.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

18. ljara and Murabaha financing (continued)

c)

liara payable represents an ljara financing facility obtained from a local bank amounting to US$27.735 million for the
purchase of a plot of land. The Group has jointly obtained this financing facility with two other investors. Accordingly,
as the liability for this financing facility is shared equally between the three investors, only the Group’s share in this
financing facility amounting to US$9.245 million is included in these consolidated financial statements. The amount
was repayable in one single installment due in June 2008. However, during the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group repaid an amount of US$3.561 million as its share in part-settlement of the ljara financing with the balance
being renewed for one year falling due in June 2009. The facility has been again rolled-over for a further period of one
more year falling due in June 2010 after the part-payment of US$1.136 million in June 2009.

Murabaha payable represents a financing facility obtained from a local bank amounting to US$2.159 million to finance
the purchase of a building. The amount is repayable in one single installment due in October 2010.

In 2008, the Group obtained a Murabaha financing facility from a local bank amounting to US$31.830 million to
finance the purchase of a land. The amount was repayable in one single installment due in August 2009, and has
been renewed by the payment of US$15.915 million for a further period of one year and the remaining loan amount is
repayable in four equal installments due in November 2009; February 2010; May 2010 and August 2010. The Group
has repaid the installment of US$3.979 million due in November 2009.

In 2008, the Group obtained a Murabaha financing facility from a local bank amounting to US$30 million to finance its
working capital requirements. The amount is repayable in three equal installments due in July 2009, January 2010
and July 2010 respectively. During the year, the installment due in July 2009 amounting to US$10 million has been
repaid.

The above financing facilities are secured against the trade receivables (Note 10), available-for-sale investments (Note 12),
investment in joint venture/associated undertakings (Note 13) and investment properties (Note 14), and bear profit at market
rates. That portion of the financing facilities which is repayable within one year of the consolidated statement of financial
position date is disclosed as current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing.

The amounts stated equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not considered significant by management.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009



€l

Woubuiogi]
(910 u1A Pl duariiolldiw D6 ngolldulodoliudl Jgatlalayl
(AuayroVlcigaJloVLdino &uoll)

JL_oJl ywiy.1a

JERSIITLY o JHouna Pl
A r\q

Aol

JY9a €1 [+h) AU Lol JUgA & Laja 6 Auoiwl o018y 5ake oy (PO i N) VO, ey

104,5xs [0n0ve (OAupol
AnlgJl roavuul)

JolaJuEgoaolig jalnll

W16 los

JUG3 L€ h) LAY Lol A L E: Laya 6 drol dor8)sale o (MV,0u s i+ A) (EPEMO,

Qe VPV (Aol
anlg)l ool

daio ol

JUga Ev:lA) \__)b._u_oimga & laja 6 dQuowwl dord)sale oauw (100410, :(A) FEFENO

)PV qVry (b0l
Anlg)l oavuul)

VvV, 1V

Ay jA roauf
(LEAN) VA0l )9 & Elios (Aizia Al VEPE, V- i A) diyia ool PVCLECA :LasU
’ anlgll poaunl) (Aol JUga E: )

(rave)

HounaPloo loh

SEaeh) Aol g L& Ly 6 dLowl ouy5ale o (MPOQAIAR: :A) MEEIVE

Qg Fay [.0)I9 (CETPITR
AnlgJl oaunl)

AApb g 0.3 dunlall Wlalicoll 6)1aY o dApil) drewll Waiesd) lanpnAj g Lalg 6)aball el Jied di)jAJl pauul

U déileio duslal tilogl]

2109 Jlowl) ol €gono (Lo 1Al gl 10 duiy dna (Jgaley (oAl GApill 0o Gl (uoaluell Gluing slouwi (i)

JWLA lajgaloy Ll ol
ol G j
Uo @Aglooll  pawilaac duwiall
JloJlywly Ego0a0
710, £,000Pr duijga AylodiwVl Hdioll A b
AR rar.or dyiyga oAl Lgoilcuy
na INPAP Q0 Auiljlo) VoMMl Hua el
Nl N,rarnao duisgA oLl allaie @iugy wgd =y
INEFP WWhrEN Mo 63210 Al
AR (VVV,0.

&oa od gl §ahn Lo Ugglio Uloalioll &uong .Aale o VA9 611l dio wunj dApill ol Euon @)adi (i)
JolaJU 6)alnll oVl dotd

9 @loll 1283l ago. s craundgil



M

Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

19. Share capital
31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Authorised
375,000,000 (2008: 375,000,000) shares of US$0.40 each (2008: US$0.40 each) 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid-up
At 1 January
243,425,000 (2008: 227,500,000) ordinary shares of US$0.40 each
(2008: US$0.40 each) SIGEne 91,000
Bonus issue
24,342,500 (2008 : 15,925,000 shares) ordinary shares of US$0.40 each 9737 6.370
(2008: US$0.40 each) ’ ’

107,107 97,370

Treasury shares
Less: 3,721,328 treasury shares (2008:7,433,070) treasury shares of US$0.40 each (1,488) 2.973)
(2008: US$0.40 each) ) :

At 31 December
264,046,173 (2008 : 235,991,930) ordinary shares of US$0.40 each (2008: 105,619 94.397
US$0.40each)

Treasury shares represent shares issued to Tameer for Private Management WLL, a subsidiary undertaking of the Company.

Additional information on shareholding pattern

i) The names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held in which they have an interest of
5% or more outstanding shares are as follows:
Percentage of

Nationality Number of shareholding

shares .
interest
Al-Muthana Investment Co Kuwaiti 40,552,362 15.1%
Kuwait Finance House Kuwaiti 20,192,052 7.6%
Dubai Islamic Bank Emirati 18,383,956 6.9%
Yaqoob Yusif Abdulla Al-Nafisi Kuwaiti 16,392,895 6.1%
Others Various 172,246,235 64.3%
267,767,500 100%

ii) The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting rights. Further, all the
shares issued are fully paid.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

19. Share capital (continued)

i) The distribution pattern of equity shares, setting out the number of shareholders and percentages in the following
categories is as follows:
Percentage of

Number of Number of total outstanding

shareholders shares
shares
Less than 1% 903 98,003,060 36.60%
1% up to less than 5% 14 74,243,175 27.73%
5% up to less than 10% 3 54,968,903 20.53%
10% up to less than 20% 1 40,552,362 15.14%
921 267,767,500 100.00%

iv) The Board of Directors collectively hold 0.66% shares of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company.
v) Contribution to charity

Transferred to charity fund
A contribution to charity fund relating to the year ended 31 December 2008 amounting to US$500 thousand (2007:
US$500 thousand) was approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 4 March 2009 (19 February

2008).

Proposed by the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Group have proposed charity contributions of US$NIl for the year ended 31 December 2009

(31 December 2008; US$500 thousand).
vi) Directors’ remuneration

An amount of US$585 thousand has appropriated from retained earnings as Directors’ remuneration in 2009, relating to
the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: US$387 thousand). The payment was approved by the shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting held on 4 March 2009 (19 February 2008).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Group has proposed Directors’ remuneration of US$261 thousand for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: US$585 thousand). Such proposed remuneration only becomes payable once it has been
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting and, accordingly, has not been accounted for in these
financial statements.

vii) Dividends

A cash dividend of US$29.211 million at 12 cents per share (2008:US$ 22.750 million at 10 cents per share) representing
30% (2008: 25 %) of the issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008
and 10% stock dividend, i.e. bonus share issue of 24.342 million shares (2008:15.925 million shares) was approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 4 March 2009 (2008:19 February 2008).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors have proposed to pay a total dividend of 7% (2008: 40%) of the issued and fully paid-up share
capital of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009. The dividend will consist a 0% (2008:30%) cash dividend
of US$NIl (2008: US$29.211 million), and a 7% (2008: 10%) stock dividend i.e. the bonus issue of 18.744 million shares
(2008: 24.342 million shares) at a par value of US$0.40 each (2008: US$0.40 each). The proposed dividend only becomes
payable once it has been approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting and, accordingly, the proposed
dividend has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

20. Reserves
a) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001, Decree No. 21 of 2001, an amount
equivalent to 10% of the Group’s net profit before appropriations is required to be transferred to a non-distributable reserve
account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital is set aside. During the year, the Group has transferred
an amount of US$1.133 million to the statutory reserve (2008: US$9.116 million).

b) Share option reserve

This represents the difference between the grant price and fair value of the Company’s shares options issued to the Group’s
employees in accordance with the employee share option plan (Note 27). This reserve will be utilised when the shares are
issued to the employees.

During the year, the Group issued 4,455,051 shares to its employees under the employees’ stock option plan. Accordingly, the

difference between the grant price and the fair value of the option as at the date of the grant, totalling to US$1,510 thousand
(2008: US$384 thousand) has been transferred from the share option reserve to the share premium account.

21. Income from properties

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
Realised gains on sale of investment properties 1,001 69,820
Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties (8,617) 24,470
Rental income 4,404 4,162
Property related facilities income 1,388 -
3,176 98,452

22. Income from investments
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
Realised gains on sale of available-for-sale investments - 5,856
Murabaha profits 2,125 2,933
Unrealised fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (657) (20)
Realised fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 272 -
Dividend income 51 87
1,891 8,856

23. Income from advisory services

Income from advisory fees includes fees earned by the Group with respect to the development of a plot of land located in the Eastern
Province of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Further, the advisory fees also include placement, project management and agency fees.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

24. Net income from construction contracts

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Contract income 30,019 7,902
Contract costs (19,468) (3,088)
10,551 4,814

The contract costs include depreciation amounting to US$467 thousand (31 December 2008: US$NIl) (Note 16).

25. Income from sale of lease/project rights

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has entered into a Joint Venture and Property Contribution Agreement (“the
Agreement”) with a strategic partner with respect to the development of a plot of land located in the Eastern Province of the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (“the Project”). In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, the Group assigned its rights in the Project to a group
of investors (“SPV") for an agreed fee. The Group has recognised revenue of US$11.162 million, net of expenses, in the consolidated
statement of income on sale of project rights to the SPV on a pro-rata basis based on the funds received from the investors till 31
December 2009.

26. Other income

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 52 (83)
Write-back of excess provisions - 2,284
Other income 345 27
397 2,228

27. Staff costs

No provision is made for staffincentive for the year ended 31 December 2009 (31 December 2008: US$18.836 million) as the Group’s
net profit are not in excess of a pre-determined hurdle rate as set out in the Group’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Further, staff costs includes expenses of US$1.020 million (31 December 2008: US$339 thousand) relating to equity-settled share-
based payment transactions for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares issued during the year.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Net profit attributable to the shareholders 11,328 91,161
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 262,300,770 259,354,900
Basic and diluted earnings per share 4.32 cents 35.15 cents

The distribution of 24.342 million (2008: 15.925 million) bonus shares was completed during the year ended 31 December
2009 and, therefore, the weighted average numbers of ordinary shares of 2008 have been restated to give effect to the bonus

issue.

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted earnings per share and basic earnings per

share are identical.

29. Related party transactions and balances

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties include entities over which the Group exercises
significant influence, major shareholders, directors and executive management of the Group. The Group’s transactions with

related parties are authorised by the management.

The following are the transactions entered into with the related parties during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2009 2008

Income
Income from properties - 84
Income from investments 44 5,912
Income from advisory services 8,162 -
Income from sale of lease/project rights 11,162 -
Other income 100 25
Share of profit from investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings 1,938 16,411

A summary of the related party balances as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2009 2008
Available-for-sale investments 11,847 7,768
Investment in a joint venture/associated undertakings 99,907 80,941
Trade and other receivables 43,488 19,910
Murabaha receivables and current accounts 5 1
Trade and other payables 9,278 15,140

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

30. Contingent liabilities and commitments
The Group’s contingent liabilities and capital commitments are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2009 2008

Uncalled share capital relating to available-for-sale investments 28,388 -
Contingent liabilities 3,921 25,777
Capital commitments 11,693 48,955
44,002 74,732

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities arise in the ordinary course of business which includes outstanding letters of credit, acceptances and

guarantees provided on behalf of a related party.

Capital commitments

The Company’s capital commitments represent amounts contracted for at the consolidated statement of financial position date in

respect of investment properties and underwriting commitments.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2009 2008

Not later than 1 year 422 2,600
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years = 359
Later than 5 years 50,784 55,293
51,206 58,252

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Financial assets and liabilities carried in the consolidated statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, Mudaraba
and Murabaha investments, available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, investment in a joint
venture/associated undertakings, trade and other receivables, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other payables. The
particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were

made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within
net debt, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes share capital
and reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
liara and Murabaha financing 70,473 101,504
Trade and other payables 120,400 172,985
Less: cash and cash equivalents (36,955) (99,414)
Net debt 153,918 175,075
Share capital 105,619 94,397
Share premium 29,962 27,345
Statutory reserve 21,473 20,340
Share option reserve 1,144 1,634
Retained earnings 79,449 109,368
Total capital and reserves 237,647 253,084
Total capital and net debt 391,565 428,159
Gearing ratio 39.30% 40.89%

Risk management

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has the overall responsibility for establishing the Group’s risk management culture and ensuring
that an effective framework is in place. The Board with the support of both the Audit Committee and Executive Committee approves
and periodically reviews risk management policies and strategies of the Group.

The principal risks facing the Group are investment, liquidity, operational, legal, reputation and regulatory risks as set out in more
details below.

Investment risk is defined as the uncertainty about the future benefits to be realised from an investment. The Group has well-
defined policies for managing investment risk. These policies cover delegated authority limits and investment assessment practices.
The Investment Department and the Finance Department study the impact of transactions on the Group’s statement of financial
position and monitors the investment portfolio on a continuous basis. Every investment application is reviewed by a designated
body depending on the size and the nature of the transaction. Fair valuation is generally conducted on a quarterly basis. The Group
has a policy to ensure the conservatism convention and to make the necessary provisions when they are warranted.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Investment risk (continued)

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Finance Department has
the overall responsibility for managing the funds and the liquidity of the Group. The day-to-day management of liquidity is the
responsibility of the Finance Department. The Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer provide broad guidelines
with regards to minimum liquid assets to be maintained and use assets maturity profile for managing the liquidity risk.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial
liabilities:

Between Between

Total P03 sond12 1and2 Morethan
months 2 years
months years
At 31 December 2009
ljara and Murabaha financing 70,473 13,979 24,664 15,915 15,915
Trade and other payables 120,400 26,558 43,058 - 50,784
Total 190,873 40,537 67,722 15,915 66,699
At 31 December 2008
liara and Murabaha financing 101,504 - 47,515 48,684 5,305
Trade and other payables 172,985 59,803 57,889 - 55,293
Total 274,489 59,803 105,404 48,684 60,598

Operational risk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or external
events. The Group seeks to minimise this risk through a framework of policies and procedures to identify, control and manage
these risks.

The Group has implemented a company-wide information system that integrates finance and property services to improve
operational efficiencies and reduce operational risks.

In addition, the Group has also implemented Business Continuity Plan to mitigate relevant operational risks resulting from the use
of information systems.

Regulatory risk is the risk of non-compliance with regulatory and legal requirements in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State of
Kuwait. The Group’s Finance Department is currently responsible for ensuring all regulations are adhered to.

Legal risk includes the risk of unexpected losses from transactions and or contracts not being enforceable under applicable laws
or from unsound documentation. The Group deals with several external law firms to support it in managing the legal risk.

Reputation risk is the risk that negative perception regarding the Group’s business practices or internal controls, whether true
or not, will cause a decline in the Group’s investors’ base and lead to costly litigations which could have an adverse impact on the
liquidity of the Group. The Board represented by the Board Executive Committee examines the issues that are considered to have
reputation repercussions for the Group and issues directives to address these.

Credit rate risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to

incur a financial loss. Cash is placed with national and international banks with good credit ratings. Management believes that no
additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Group’s trade receivables.

Inovest BSC Anuual Report 2009
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in US$000’s)

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Credit rate risk (continued)

Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out below. Further disclosures regarding
trade and other receivables, which are neither past due nor impaired, are provided in Note 10 to these consolidated financial

statements.

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value exposure
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 36,955 36,955 99,414 99,414
Mudaraba and murabaha investments - - 6,764 6,764
Trade and other receivables 107,957 107,957 131,588 131,588

Currency rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s foreign currency transactions are predominantly in Bahrain Dinars which is effectively pegged to the United States Dollars.
Accordingly, the management does not consider the Group to have a significant currency rate risk.
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

As of 31 December 2009, the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were denominated in the following currencies

(US$000’s equivalent):
Financial assets
. United Arab
United States Bahrain Dinars Saudi Riyals Kuwait Dinar Emirates Total
Dollars .
Dirhams
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 = 2008 2009 2008
Trade and other | 5 74 20 104234 | 131,465 22 103 . . . - 107957 | 131,588
receivables
Cash and cash 2669 4066 34214 95051 - 266 67 26 5 5| 36955 99,414
equivalents
Mudaraba
and Murabaha - - - 6,764 - - - - - - - 6,764
investments
Available-
for-sale 2,693 2,135 15,352 15,252 |« 12,862 = 10,193 @ 1,512 | 1,512 - - 32,419 29,092
investments
Financial assets
atfarrvale - - - - - - | 3,148 @ 3,768 - - 3,148 3,768
through profit
or loss
Investments in
joint venture/ 11,653 11,583 61,724 | 69,358 | 26,530 - - - E - 99,907 80,941
associated
undertakings
Total 20,716 = 17,804 | 215524 317,890 | 39,414 | 10,562 @ 4,727 | 5,306 5 5 | 280,386 | 351,567
Financial liabilities
) United Arab
United States Bahrain Dinars Saudi Riyals Kuwait Dinar Emirates Total
Dollars i
Dirhams
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 = 2009 | 2008 2009 2008
liara and
Murabaha 20,000 = 30,000 50,473 71,504 - - - - - - 70,473 | 101,504
financing
Tradeandother | ;455 4608 113,238 | 165,041 - 3,336 - - - - | 120,400 | 172,985
payables
Total 27,162 | 34,608 | 163,711 @ 236,545 - 3,336 - - - - 190,873 | 274,489
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in US$000’s)

31. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market rates. The Group’s
assets and liabilities are not considered by management to be sensitive to profit rate risk.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable, wiling parties in an
arm’s length transaction.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying amounts.

32. Zakah

The shareholders of the Company will be liable for the payment of Zakah.

33. Comparative balances

Certain comparative balances have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform with the presentation adopted in the
current year. Such reclassification did not affect previously reported profit or equity.
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